B S. Sharma & Co.

) Chartered Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF
DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)

1. Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED, (Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited) (“The Company?”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), Cash Flow Statement and Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial petformance including comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

3. Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the Act and the Rules
made thereunder. We conducted our audit of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing as specified in the provisions of Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments; the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED, 2017-18
(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)

4. Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind-AS
financial statements together with notes thereon, give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind-AS of the financial position of the company as at 31 March, 2018 and its financial
performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

5. Other matters

The Company had prepared separate financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 in accordance with Accounting Standards (‘AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), on which we issued auditor’s
report dated 24 May 2017 and 23 May 2016 respectively. These financial statements have been adjusted
for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS, which
have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matters,

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by the ‘Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 as amended by issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”)
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure
“A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

B. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books;

() The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as per the evidences produced,
details furnished, with support and other letters from the Management, we express our opinion
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, that:
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a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position except as otherwise stated in Annexure to Auditors’ Report and Note no.45 of
Notes to Ind AS Financial statements hereto.

b. The Company did have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as detailed in
Note no.46 of Notes to financial statements, for which there were no material foreseeable
losses.

c. 'There has been no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund, since the same is not applicable to the Company.

d. The disclosers in the standalone Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December

2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2018.

For B S SHARMA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
FR No. 128249W

RMA
PROPRIETOR,
Membership No.031578

Place: Mumbai,
Dated: 29.05.2018
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 6(A) under the heading of “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” of our report of even date to the members of Dish Infra
Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited) , on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

We report, on the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) of Dish Infra
Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited) ('the
Company'), as under:

(i) In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including Quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets on the basis of available information.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, fixed assets, other than consumer
premise equipment (CPE) installed at the customers’ premises and located at different locations
and with various agencies, have been physically verified by the management in phased/periodical
manner excluding the assets received on Business Transfer from Dish TV India Limited (the
Holding company) under agreement dated 26 March 2018 (Refer Note no.42 of Notes to the
financial statements) relating to Business Combinadon) effective on 31t March 2018 and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion the frequency of
verification of the fixed assets, other than CPEs installed at the customers’ premises, is
reasonable having regard to size of the Company and nature of its assets. As informed, the
existence of CPEs installed at the customers’ premises is considered on the basis of the ‘active
uset status’. Considering the size of the CPEs located in premises all over India, we are unable to
comment on the discrepancies, if any, that could have arisen on physical verification of CPEs
lying with the customers in ‘inactive condition’ and to the extent discrepancies were noticed the
same were dealt with appropriately in the books of accounts.

c) The Company has no immovable properties, hence the clause relating thereto of being in its
name, is not applicable.

(ii) Inventory:

The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the
year. In our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the nature of
business and size of operations. As explained to us, there is no material discrepancy noticed on
verification between physical stock and book records.

(i) Loans secuted or unsecured granted:

Based on our verification of the books and records and as per information and explanations
provided to us by the management, the company has not granted, secured or unsecured, loans to
Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs), or other parties covered in the Registers
maintained under section 189 of the Act, hence the provisions in sub-clause iii (a), iii (b) and iii (c) of
clause 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) Loan to directors and investment by the Company:

In our opinion, according to the information and explanations given to us the Company
has not granted any, secured or unsecured, loans and/or made any investments and/or provided

any guarantees and/or securities, hence provisions of Section 185 and Section 186 of the Order are
not applicable.
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(v) Public Deposits:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted deposits as covered under the provisions of sections 73 to 76 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) Cost Accounting Records
We have been informed by the management that the maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the
services rendered by the Company.

(vii) Statutory Compliance

In respect of statutory dues, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the records of the company examined by us,

a. The Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax,
value added rax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities, except for delays of a few days in some cases. There are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax,
Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, value added tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, were in arrear as at 31 March, 2018 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

b.There are no dues on account of relating to Income Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty
and other statutory dues, which have not been deposited as on 31 March 2018 on account of any
disputes. The disputed dues, relating to Value added tax and others as detailed hereunder, whether
deposited and/or partly deposited or not deposited are as under:-

2 ]
Period to ;
Name of the Nature of the which the Amount (Rs. Forum where dispute is pending Amount paid
Statute dues In Lacs) under protest
amount relates
Value Added Delhi Value Added Tax Tribunal
Tax FY2007-08 28,306,867 Delhi 2,000,000
Delhi Value
Added Tax Act, | Value Added
2004 Tax (including - Special Commissioner, Department
penalty and FY2009-10 16,860,161 of Trade & Taxes, Delhi -
interest)
Value Added
Andhra Pradesh 9 3 x .
Value Added T’“’;‘aj‘"dzi‘“g 2006-08 28,608,770 ]S_l“*g: T‘;‘a’;“’“ Sippeliate Aoy, 28,608,770
Tax Act, 2005 | Peray @ s
Interest)
2007-08 1,508,829 | Commercial Tax Officer, Patna 1,460,299
Value Added i i
Bihar Value v 2008-09 5,885,755 | Commercial Tax Officer, Patna 4,360,530
Added Tax Act, f 3 i
2005 FY2012-13 gitfiisg | Dihas Commmescial Tunes T, 27,012,861
Patna ’
icle Seiz Joint Commissioner of Commercial
Vehicle Seizure FY2014-15 625612 | T res, Appeal Patna T
H
atyssy, Vgl Value Added dated 15-12- Jt. Excise & Taxation Commissioner
Added Tax Act- 40,540
2003 Tax 2012 (Appeal), Haryana 40,540
Kerala Value The Intelligence inspector,
Added Tax Act- | Vehicle Seizure Oct 13 96,260 | Department of Commercial taxes, 96.260
2003 Thiruvananthapuram. i
22,400 Deputy Commissioner, Khand-3,
Uttar Pradesh . Noida (Vehicle Seizure) 22,400
Value Added Vehicle Seizure
Tax, Act, 2008 Deputy Commissioner, Khand-3,
Noida (Vehicle Seizure) 22,500
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Bihar Value ; i .
al
Added Tax Act, Value Added FY2015-16 36971476 Jeint Commissioner of Commerci: 36,971,476
= Tax Taxes, Appeal, Patna
2005
FY2015-16 169,400 | DCCT Noida Khand-3
U bl | yore Aiddoa 169,400
Value Added
Tax i
Tax, Act, 2008 FY2015-16 52,640 | DCCT Noida Khand-3 59,640
Jammu &
’};ashmi: Entry Entry Tax Act 11,193,756 9,052,753
ax
FY2011-12 1,153,803 ggmmlssmner of Commercial Taxes,
The Tripura Value Added Lgynite]
] g issi i 1,025,001
VAT Act, 2004 Tax Act FY2012-13 2253522 Cc?mmlssmner of Commercial Taxes, ,025,000
Tripura
. Bi 3 ial Taxes Tribunal,
Vehicle Seizure FY2015-16 5,557,690 Pf;‘: SR R 1,000,000
Commissioner of Commercial Taxes
Entry Tax FY2011-12 1,341,465 2
The Bibar Value | Patna 536,586
Added Tax Act, | vajue Added Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
2005 Tax Ll sl 362800 | porna 2,145,154
Value Added Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
Tax FY2012-13 4,037,255 Patrrs 1,614,902
Value Added Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
Tax FY2013-14 2,365,469 Pateia 046,188
Value Added FY2010-11 12,764,609 Commissioner ofﬁCommcrcml Taxes,
The Jharkhand Tax Jharkhand, Ranc -
VAT Aect, 2005 Value Added Commissioner of Commercial Taxes,
Tax FY2011-12 13,334,023 Jharkhand, Ranchi !
The Madhya & i .
Pradesh VAT }“‘1"“ Atiled FY2011-12 588,960 %"f? Comapiiome (ol -
Act, 2002 = HPEAS .
The Kerala Value Added Deputy Commissioner Appels, "
VAT Act, 2003 Tax FEi5ch 45,241,657 Ernakulam e s
The " o 5
Maharashtra b 2009102013 | 179,652,756 ]?:f‘;‘yﬁ;"b“;‘“me' ek )
VAT Act, 2002 | “** N
The Gujarat Value Added Deputy Commissioner of
VAT Act, 2003 | Tax FLa1 TIRBA00 || mmmernial Tanex, Ghataas :
The hndtin Value Added May-15 to Sep- Appellate Deputy Commissioner
Pradesh VAT | 1 T 35587109 | B e m—
Act, 2005 a e i 20y
Value Added " Special Commissioner, Department
The Delhi Tax FYa011-12 26622897 Q*ETrﬂdE & Taxes, Delhi :
g Value Added Special C issi D
Tu Act, 2005 alue IC < o pECla ommissioner, epartrncnt
Tax Y14 35:606,728 of Trade & Taxes, Delhi
Grand Total 555,801,251 141,014,852

(viii) Loans From Banks/Financials Institution

(ix)

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institution or banks or to Non convertible debenture holders during the year. The company has no
loans or borrowings payable to the Government.

Application of Money Received From Equity or Loan

Accordingly to the information and explanations given, the Company has not raised money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer during the year. However, on and from the “appointed
date”, the Company has accepted term loans, given by the transferor company in earlier period(s),
pursuant to business combination as stated in Note 34 to the financial statements. The term loans
raised and debt instruments issued have been generally applied by the Company during the year for

the purposes for which they were obtained, except for funds temporarily not required were deposited

in the fixed maturity deposits. Accordingly, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable.
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(x) Fraud Reporting

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and to the best of our knowledge
and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees noticed or reported during the year nor have been informed of any such case by the
Management.

(xi) Managerial Remuneration

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given, records of the company
examined by us, the Company has not paid or provided for managerial remuneration duting the year
as per the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Hence clause 3(xi) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiif) Nidhi Company — Compliance with Deposits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions

According to the information and explanations given and based on our examination of the records,
the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Note no.41 of
the Ind AS financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party
Disclosers specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

(xiv) Issue of Share Capital and Use of Amount raised

According to the records of the Company examined, information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, Section 42 of the Act read with paragraph
3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable.

(xv) Transaction with Director

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with such directors, hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) Registration with RBI

In our opinion and according to the information given, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-I of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934,

For B S SHARMA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration Number: 128249\

(

CABS
PROPRIETO

Mumbai, 29.05.2018
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 6(B)(f) under of the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Dish Infra Services Private
Limited (Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited) on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DISH INFRA SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited) ("the
Company") as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

'The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“The guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“The ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Act.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures on test basis to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

.
. . ) . . ZRRM X
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed t;)}é;@ﬂdt“&a}““ N\

I
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reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisation
of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future petiods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were, checked on test basis,
considering the nature of business and size of operations, delegation of authorities and responsibilities at
different levels, operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting critetia established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For B S SHARMA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018
(Al mmsunts {n INR Lakhs, unless vtherwise stated)

Asat Asat As al
Noles 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ASSETS
Non current asscts
Property, plant and equipments 5 2,96.211 1.73.042 1,60.200
Capital work-in-progress 6 61,823 55,554 46,679
Goodwill 7 2,36.405 - -
Other intangible assels 8 17,565 106 -
Financial assets
Other financial assets 9 3,326 332 1,294
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 1,02,916 45,984 38,588
Current tax assets (met) 1 3,427 1,133 -
Other non current assets 12 6,823 8,102 8,316
7,28,496 2,84,253 2,55,077
Current assets
Inventories 13 3,566 1,012 936
Financial assets
Investments 14 - 1,481 8,203
Trade receivables 5 1,815 449 778
Cash and cash equivalenis 16 2,996 4,459 6,874
Othier bank balances 17 13,362 936 2,289
Loans 18 486 169 107
Other financial assels 19 3,034 1,055 1,829
Other current assels 20 17,731 16,331 12418
42,990 25,892 33,434
Total assets 7,71,486 3,10,145 2,88,511
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 71 11,801 11,801 11,801
Other equity 22 14,464 21,59 26,239
26,265 33,395 38,040
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 23 1,78,619 58,133 1,09.616
Other finacial liabilities 24 4,483 10,791 5433
Provisions 25 2,690 1,219 978
Other non current liabilities 26 10,735 375 598
1,96,527 70,518 1,16,625
Current linhilities
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 27 32,919 - 284
Trade payables 28 11,945 4,474 2,426
Other financial liabilities 29 4,46,264 1,74,461 1,04,811
Other current liabilities 30 57,497 27,274 24,543
Provisions 31 - 69 23 20
Current tax liabilities (net) 32 - - 1,762
5,48,694 2,06,232 1,33,846
“Total equity nnd liabilities 7,71,486 ].10,_!45 E_SS,SH
Summary of significant accounting policies 4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dish Infra Services Private Limited

For B. 8, Sharma & Co.

% 8 Nea CQ'\--‘\%‘
Ranjit Srivaddva Radhey Shyam Pandey
Director Director
Q1546375 DIN: 06939624

Rajeey K. Dalmia sef ‘: e m:'m

B. 8. Sharma
Proprietor
Membership No. 031578

Chief Financial Officer 3F Company Secrelary

Membership No. A35025

Place : Mumbai Place : Noida
Dated: 29 May 2018 Dated: 29 May 2018



Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amornts in INR Lakls, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Income
Revenue from operations 33 111,021 1,12,554
Other income 34 1,458 2,735
Total Income 1,12,479 1,15,289
Expenses
Purchases of stock in trade 335 644
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 35 117 (76)
Operating expenses 36 14,515 12,684
Employee benefits expense 37 8,406 8,684
Finance costs 38 13,650 15,024
Depreciation and amortization expense 39 64,017 61,020
Other expenses 40 22,959 28,717
Total expenses 1,23,999 1,26,697
(Loss)/Profit before tax (11,520) (11,408)
Tax expense:
Current tax 417 1,284
Deferred tax (2,735) (7,420}
{Loss)/Profit for the year (9,202) (5,272)
Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of gains/(loss) on defined benefit plan 141 71
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (49) (24)

Other comprehensive income for the year 92 47
Total comprehensive income for the year (9,110) (5,225)
Earnings per share (EPS) (face value Rs. 10)

Basic 52 (7.80) (4.47;

Diluted 52 (7.80) (4.47)
Summary of signifieant accounting policies 4
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
This is the standalone statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For B. S, Sharma & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

Q - a\cﬁ,\_”f

Ranjit Sriva Radhey Shyam Pandey
Director Director

Proprietor

Membership No. 031578 DIN: 01546375 DIN: 06939624
LA Kr-—ﬁw—\_,h
Rajeev K. Dalmia Kamna Tomar
Chicf Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No. A35025

Place : Mumbai Place : Noida
Dated: 29 May 2018 Dated: 29 May 2018



DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from eperating activities

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Net profit/ (loss) before tax (11,5200 (11.408)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense 64.017 61.020
Loss on sale/ discard of fixed assets and capital work-in-progress 1476 1.631
Profit on redemption of units of mutual funds (25) (519)
Share based payment to employees 16 4
Financial guarantee expense 1,802 21017
Allowance for expected eredit loss 23 19
Bad debts and balances written off 1 -
Liabilities written back (1 (42)
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 1616 2,402
Interest expense 10.629 LT
Intercst income (202) (183)
Operating profit before working eapital changes 67,721 66,157
Changes in working capital

(Increase) in inventories 117 (76)
(Increase) in trade receivables (407) 09
Increase in trade payables 3,095 2.06:
(Increase) in other financial assets (2.016) (:173)
(Increase)decrease in other assels 58 (9.951)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 41 245
Increase in other current liabilities 18.367 30010
Cash generated from operations 86,977 H8.38Y
Income taxes paid (net of refund) (2,710 (4.180)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 84,267 84,209
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of fixed assets (including adjustment for creditors for fixed assets,work in progress

and capital advancces) (86,121) (83.829)
Cash received on account of Slump purchase 181 -
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 252 16
Purchase of current investments - (118.700)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 1.506 125.942
Movements in fixed deposits (1,435) 1.390
Interest received 202 178
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (85,415) (75,003)
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid (11,474) (6.676)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 53.383 16.626
Repayments of long term borrowings (75,143) (21.287)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 32919 .
Repayments of short term borrowings = (284)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (315) (11,621)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.4463) (2.415)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,459 6.874
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,996 4,459




DISH INFRA SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash and cash equivalents includes:

Cash on hand
Balances with scheduled banks :
- in current accounts
- in saving accounts
- deposits with maturity of upto 3 months
Cheques, drafls on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow. The above cash flow statement is ne

india Limited.

This is the consolidated cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

For B. 8. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. [28249W

Proprietor
Membership No. 031578

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 29 May 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

2 3
2,985 4,337
- 86

9 33
2,996 4,459

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Ranjit 8ti va
Director
DIN: 01546375

Rajeev K. Dalmia
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Noida
Dated: 29 May 2018

L off non-cash items as part of Business transfer agreement wit Dish TV

2.3 -gwi':\i

Radhey Shyam Pandey
Director
DIN: 06939624

@fvgmw

Kamna Tomar
Company Seretary
Membership No. A35025




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at I April 2016 11,801
Changes in equily share capital during the year B
Balance as at 31 March 2017 11,801
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 11,801
B. Other equity
Reserves & | Other Components of Total other equity
Surplus Equity (OCE)
Particulars Retained Equity contribution
earnings from holding company
Balance as at [ April 2016 23,305 2,934 26,239
Profit for the period (5,272) - (5,272}
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 47 - 47
Other Adjustments with holding company - 580 580
Balance as at 31 March 2017 18,080 3,514 21,594
Profit for the period (9,202) - (9,202)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 92 - 92
Other adjustments with holding company - 1,980 1,980
Balance as at 31 March 2018 8,970 5,494 14,464

This is the Standalone statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For B. 8. Sharma & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 128249W

B. S. Sharm
Proprietor
Membership No. 031578

Place : Mumbai
Dated: 29 May 2018

'/ F. R, No.
128249W

Ranjit Sriva
Director
DIN: 01546375

i

Rajeev K. Dalmi

va

1a

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Noida

Dated: 29 May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Dish Infra Services Private Limited

?\xetﬂ\%‘

Radhey Shyam Pandey
Director
DIN: 06939624

45‘ P, Tty
Kamna Tomar
Company Secretary
Membership No. A35025




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background
Dish Infra Services Private Limited (‘Dish Infra’ or ‘the Company) (formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution
Private Limited) was incorporated on 13 February 2014. The company is inter-alia engaged in the business of
providing infrastructure and back end support services to the Direct to Home (DTH) Service providers and their
subscribers along with other ancillary services. Iis registered office is at Essel House, B-10 Lawrence Road,
Industrial Area, Delhi-110035, India.

2. General Information and Statement Of Compliance With Indian Accounting Standards (Ind As)
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA") under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('the Act) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other provisions of the Act . The
Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first financial statements which the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS (see note 46 for explanation for transition to Ind AS). For the purpose of comparatives,
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 and opening balance sheet as at | April 2016 are also
prepared as per Ind AS.

The financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2018 were authorised and approved for issue by Board of
Directors on May 29, 2018,

3. Recent accounting pronouncement
Standard issued but not yet effective
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate A ffairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018, notifying Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. The amendments are
in line with recent amendments made by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). This amendment is
applicable to the Company from | April 2018. The Company will be adopting the amendments from their
effective date.

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 11, Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18, Revenue. Ind AS 115 requires an
entity to report information regarding nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from a contract with customers. The principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue that
demonstrates the transfer of promised goods and services to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The standard
can be applied either retrospectively to each prior period presented or can be applied retrospectively with
recognition of cumulative effect of contracts that are not completed contracts at the date of initial application of
standard.

not expected to be material,

Y £ <
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Based on the preliminary assessment performed by the Company, the impact of application of the St?dard is




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

4.

a)

b)

c)

d)

Significant accounting policies

Overall considerations and first time adoption of Ind ASs

These financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below.

These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in these financial statements, except
where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets, financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as
explained in relevant accounting policies.

Current versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable as per the
operating cycle of the Company and other criteria set out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred by the
Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred, the equity interests issued and fair value of contingent consideration issued.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as and when incurred.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised either in
profit or loss or as a change to OCI.

If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is measured as excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
resulting gain on bargain purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However,
if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity ag-eapital
reserve, without routing the same through other comprehensive income. e\ £ ?i § ,»\_«\Ji




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

¢

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use upto the date when the assets are ready for use. Any trade discount, recoverable
taxes and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. All other repairs .and maintenance are
recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Consumer premises equipment (CPE) are treated as part of capital work in progress till the time of activation
thereof, post which the same gets depreciated. Capital work in progress is valued at cost.

Subsequent measurement (Depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less depreciation and impairment loss.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, computed on the basis of
useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule II, of the Companies Act, 2013, as under:

Asset category Useful life (in years)
Plant and machinery 75

Office equipment except mobile 5

Mobiles 25
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles ; .
Computers

Laptops, Desktops and other devices 3

Servers and networks

In case of Consumer Premise Equipments (CPE), life of the assets have been assessed based on technical advice
taking into account the nature, estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of assets, past history of
replacement, anticipated technological changes etc. and accordingly CPEs are depreciated over their useful life
of five years, as estimated by management.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and its carrying amount) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the respective asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant
and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the provisions of Previous GAAP and usc-+ha

b




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

{(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

f) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually
identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

g) Other Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. These assets are valued at
cost which comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for
its intended use.

Cost of computer software includes license fees, cost of implementation and directly aftributable system
integration expenses. These costs are capitalized as intangible assets in the year in which related software is
implemented.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)
Software are amortised over an estimated life of one year to five years.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets
recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the provisions of Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
the deemed cost of intangible assets,

h) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and
the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the
reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously
recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recoghition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —

i) All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of
the assets.

if) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the co acrta]

terms. X Wl K=E e \-*\
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables

The Company applies simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires
lifetime expected credit losses to be recognised from the date of initial recognition of receivables.

Other financial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has
increased significantly, impairment loss is provided.

j) Inventories
Inventories of customer premises equipment (CPE) related accessories and spares are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories includes all costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

k) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net of rebates and taxes. The
Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the sales transaction as set out below.

i} Revenue from rendering of services
- Revenue from subscription services is recognised prorata over the subscription pack period during the
period when the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised net of taxes collected from the customer,
collection charges and any discount given. Consideration received in advance for subscription services
is initially deferred and included in other liabilities.

- Lease rental is recognized as revenue as per the terms of the contract over the period of lease on a
straight line basis.

- Activation fee is recognised on an upfront basis considering the level of services rendered on activation,
the corresponding cost incurred and separate consideration charged for the subsequent continuing
services.

- Infrastructure support fees is recognised on the basis of fixed rate agreement on the basis of active
customers over the period when services are delivered.

if) Revenue from sale of goods
. Revenue from sale of stock-in-trade is recognised when the products are dispatched against orders to
the customers in accordance with the contract terms and the Company has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards.

. Sales are stated net of rebates, trade discounts, sales returns and taxes on sales.
iii) Interest income
- Income from deployment of surplus funds is recognised on accrual basis using the effective intefgst rate
(EIR) method. f\ - i?m 1_,\ \
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

]

m)

n)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency :

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is also the functional and presentation
currency of the Company,

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between
the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on such conversion and settlement at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise,

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs include interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Borrowing costs related to a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
In case of significant long-term loans, other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds are
amortised over the period of respective loan.

Post-employment, long term and short term employce benefits

i) Post-employment benefit
Defined contribution plan
The Company deposits the contributions for provident fund and employees’ state insurance to the
appropriate government authorities and these contributions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the financial year to which they relate.

Defined benefit plan

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year by an
independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based
on the market yields on Government Securities for relevant maturity. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

iif) Other long term employee benefits
Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences constitute other long-term employee benefits. The
liability in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an
independent actuary using the projected unit eredit method at the year end. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii) Short-term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable whally within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus, etc., are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

o) Employee stock option scheme

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan of the Company is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of share options, the
proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares issued with any excess being
recorded as share premium.

p) Leases
Company as a lessee
Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature. Rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase
in rent compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

q) Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic earning/loss per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for tthffects

of all dilutive potential equity shares. ki
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

) Taxation

s)

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except
the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on
unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised
against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results,
adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit
and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit such as (Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT") credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only
when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. In the year in which such credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is
created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the
extent it is not reasonably certain that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, commitments and contingent assets

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more
likely than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such obligations
and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are discounted to their present value
(where time value of money is material) and are determined based on the management’s estimation of the
outflow required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence of non-occurrence of future events, not wholly
within the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for the present obligations that have
arisen from past events in respect of which it is not probable that there will be an outflow of resources or a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

When there is an obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is vii
related asset is disclosed.

g Fean, bl




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs, lacs, unless otherwise stated)

t) Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs,
except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Financial assets

Subsequent measurement

Financial asset at amortised cost — the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are accounted for at cost in
accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements.

Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Derivative instruments — derivatives such as options and forwards are carried at fair value through profit and
loss with fair gains/losses recognised in profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent measureritent

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.,

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

i S




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash at bank and in hand, cheques in hand and short term investments that
are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value..

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the
reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon management’s knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could differ from those estimates and revisions, if any, are recognised in the current and
future periods.

Significant management judgements
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that
have the most significant effect on the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets: The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets,

Classification of leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors,
including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic
life, proportion of present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of
specialized nature of the leased asset. The Company has also factored in overall time period of rent agreements
to arrive at lease period to recognise rental income on straight line basis.

Contingent liabilities: At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided belovpttctual results may be different.
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets: At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables.

Impairment of goodwill: At each balance sheet date, goodwill is tested for impairment. The recoverable
amount of cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on the higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost
to sell. Key assumptions on which the management has based its determination of recoverable amount include
estimated long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. The cash
flow projections take into account past experience and represent the management’s best estimate about future
developments. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets are approved by management.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO): Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, medical cost trends, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO
amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements: Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument,

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software,
customer relationships, IT equipment and other plant and equipment.
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone fi inl
(Al amoimnis in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipments

for the year ended 31 March, 2018

assels
§ please see detail ns below:-

Gross carrying value on disposaléadjustments for the year ended 31 March 2017 Rs. 27,743 for office equipment

Gross carrying value on addition on of b

transfer agr

A.cc\muiucd dcprcciatm eh&rgc for the year ended 31 March 2017, Rs. 22,036 for furniture and fixtures

A on d Fad!

for the year ended 31 March 2017 Rs. 3,359 for office equipment

Accamulated depmcmmn ﬁaa.rge for the year ended 31 March 2018, Rs. 32,013 for furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation on disposal/adjustments for the year ended 31 March 2018 Rs. 29,075 for office cquipment

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

Refer note 23 and 27 for infonmation on property, plant and cquipment pledged as security by the Company.

Contractual obligation
Refer note 53 (b) for discl of |

Capitalised borrowing cost

for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

The borrowing cost has not been capitafised during the year 31 March 2018, 31 March 2617 and 1 April 2016.

t for (he year ended 31 March 2018, Rs. 17,127 for plant and machinery and Rs. 34,023 for office equipment.

S Phjnt and f:::::r i qmn Furniture and Electrical Total
equipments quiy fixfures Instalfations
cquipments
Gross earrying amount
Asat 1 April 2016 o 2,12,916 %0 2 1 . 213,029
Additions 73,687 158 20 2 - 73,867
Disposal/ adjustiments § - - 19 0 - - 19
As at 31 March 2017 30 | 2,86,603 219 2 3 - 2,86,877
Additions [ 62,358 179 6 1 - 62,545
Additions on account of business (ransfer agreement (refer note 42) § 0 1,25,328 23 0 12 1 1,25,364
|Disposal/ adjustments - 3,144 26 1 - n
As at 31 March 2018 3L 471,148 395 27 16 1 4,71,615
Accumulated depreciation
Asat | Apnl 2016 14 52,786 28 ] - 52,829
Charge for the year § 6 60,956 45 3 o - 61,010
Disposal/ adjustments $ - - 4 0 - - 4
As at 31 March 2017 20 1,§3,742 &9 d ] - 1,13,835
Charge for the year § s 63,598 7 6 o - 63,680
Additions on account of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) § = " " g = = P
Disposal/ adjustments § - 2,099 12 0 - - 211
As at 31 March 2018 25 1,75,241 128 10 Q - 1,75,404
Net block as at | April 2016 16 1,60,130 52 | 1 - 1,60,200
Net block as at 31 March 2017 10 1,72,861 150 8 3 - 1,73.042
Net biock ns at 31 March 2018 6 2,95.904 267 17 16 i 2,96,211
* Represents deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS. Gross block and accumulated amartisation from the previous GAAP have been disclosed for the purpose of better und g of the eriginal cost of




6 Capital work in progress

Particulars Amount

Gross carrying amount

Asat | April 2016 46,679
Addilions 82,742
Transfer to property, plant & equipment 73,867
As as 31 March 2017 59554
Additions 62,529
Additions on account of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) 6,285
Transfer to property, plant & equipment 62,545
As at 31 March 2018 61,823

Capital work in progress

Refer note 23 and 27 for information on capital work in progress pledged as security by the Company.

7 Goodwill

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Goodwill 2,36,405 - -
Maovement of goodwill

Opening balance - - -
Additions on aceount of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) 2,36,405 - -
Disposal/adjustment - - -
Closing balance 2,36,405 - -

Impairment testing

At cach balance sheet date, goodwill is tested for impairment. The recoverable amount of cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on the higher of value-

in-use and fair value less cost to sell. key assumptions on which the management has based its determination of recoverabl
growth rales, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. The cash flow projections take into accou
management’s best estimate about future developments, Cash flow projections based on financial budgets are approved b

8 Other intangible assets

e amount include estimated long-term
nt past experience and represent the
y management.

* Represents deemed cost on the date of transition {o [nd AS. Gross
purpose of better understanding of the original cost of assets

Contractual obligation

block and accumulated amortisation from the previous G

Customer &
Particulars License fee Software Distributor Total
Relationship
Gross carrying amount
Asat | April 2016 = - - -
Additions 116 - - 116
Disposal/adjustment = = " =
As as 31 March 2017 116 - a 116
Additions 3 3,015 - 3,018
Additions on account of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) g - 14,778 14,778
Disposal/adjustment - % - =
As as 31 March 2018 119 3,015 14,778 17,912
Acenmulated amortisation
Asat | April 2016 - = = .
Charge for the year 10 - 0 10
Additions on account of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) F " =
Disposal/ adjustments o s . 5
Asas 31 March 2017 10 - 10
Charge for the year 26 311 - 337
Additions on account of business transfer agreement (refer note 42) 4 - .
Disposal/ adjustments r s - -
As as 31 March 2018 36 311 5 347
Net block s at 1 April 2016" . : ; "
Net block as at 31 March 2017 106 " = 106
Net block as at 31 March 2018 83 2,704 g M8 17,565
AP T ATE Feah s




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Asat As at
9 Other financial assets (non-current) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Others
Bank deposits with of more than 12 months maturity* 2,052 18 55
Unamortised corporate guarantee charges 1,274 314 1,239
3326 332 1,294

*Refer note 44 C for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at cost and refer note 45 B for assessment of expected credit loss

10 Deferred tax assets/liabilities (net) As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 1,02,245 46,128 38,710
Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment 1,310 458 346
Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost (639) (602) (468)
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) ( net) 1,02.916 45,984 38,588
As at ¥ 5 As at
Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended 31 March 1 April 2017 Recognised / reversed Recognised / reversed Recognised / reversed as 31 March 2018
2018 P through profit and loss through OCI per BTA
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 46,128 2,779 53,339 1,02,245
Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment 458 385 (49) 516 1.310
Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost (602) (429) 392 {639)
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 45,984 2,735 (49) 54,247 1.02.916
As at As at
Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended 31 March 1 April 2016 Recognised / reversed Recognised / reversed 31 March 2017
2017 through profit and loss through OCI
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 38,710 7418 - 46,128
Provision for employee & others liabilities deductible on actual payment 346 136 (24) 458
Receivables, financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost (468) (134) - (602)
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 38,588 7.420 (24)
11 Current tax assets (net) As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Income tax (net of provision of Rs. 5,178 Lacs (31 March 2017: 4,761 lacs, 3427 1133 &
1 April 2016: Rs Nil))
3.427 -

Fond oy
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Other non current assets As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Capital advances 914 6,420 7,085
Balance with government / statutory authorities* 5,497 1,682 1,231
Prepaid expenses 412 (0) -
6,823 8,102 8,316
*represent amount paid under protest netted off provision recognised Rs. 2,181 lacs (31 March 2017: Rs. 1,682 lacs and | April 2016: Rs. 1,231 lacs)
Inventories Asat As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Stock-in trade (at the lower of cost and net realisable value)
Customer premises equipment related accessorics and spares 3,566 1,012 936
3,566 1,012 936
Inventories have been pledged as security for liabilitics, refer note 23 and 27
Current investments As at As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Investment in mufual funds
Nil units ( 31 March 2017: 63,906 units, 1 April 2016: 115,786 )of DSP

Blackrock Liquidity Fund-Growth ; Lt &30
Nil units ( 31 March 2017: nil units and 1 April 2016: 23,402,089 units) of
Kotak Flexi Debt scheme institutional- Growth - : 3,700
& 1,481 8,203
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - 1,481 8,203
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - & %
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 5 % "
- 1,481 8,203
Trade receivables As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Unsecured considered good 1,815 449 778
Unsecured considered doubtful 43 19
1,858 468 778
Less: allowances for expected credit loss (43) (19 -
1,815 449 778
Trade receivable have been pledged as sccurity for liabilities, refer note 23 and 27
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Balances with banks:-
In current accounts 2,985 4,337 4,769
In deposit account with maturity of less than three months - 86 378
Cheques, drafts in hand 9 33 1,726
Cash in hand 2 3 1
2,996 4,459 6,874
Other bank balances As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 13,362 036 2289
13,362 936 2,289
Loans (current) As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Security deposits (Unsccured, considered good)* ’ %er Vi
Others 169 e Ny 107
169 J<of NS 107

*The carrying values are considered to be reasonable approximatio
rymg app




19 Other financial assets (current)

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Others
Interest receivable
Other recoverable
Income accrued but not due on fixed deposils
Derivatives not designated as hedge - principal swap
Insurance claim receivables
Unamortised corporate guarantee fee

20 Other current assets

Advances against goods, services & others
Related parties
Others

Others
Balance with government / statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses
Unamortised borrowing costs
Unamortised premium on forward contracts

As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
599 - -
2,204 - i
- 21 16
- - 167
& 2 =
231 1,032 1,646
3,034 1,055 1,829
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
1,281 1,484 1,049
9,894 10,766 3318
6,130 2,973
77 282
317 288
‘32 538
17,731 lS!JSI
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Dish Infra Services Private Limited
Naotes to the Standalone financial for the period ended 31 March 2018
{All armonnts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Authorised
120,000,000 (31 March 2017 120,000,000 and 1 April 2016 120.000,000) Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 Each 12,000 12,000 12,000

12,000 12,000 12,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
118,010,000 (31 March 2017 ?IS,U!U,GOU and 1 April 2016 118,010,000) Equity 11.801 11,801 11,801
Shares of Rs 10 Each Fully Paid Up
Total Equity share capital 11.801 11,801 11,801
Footnotes:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding Nos Nos Nos
Sheres at the beginning of the year 11,80,10,000 11,80,10,000 11,80,10,000
Add: Further issued during the year - + -
Shares at the end of the year 11,80,10,000 11,80,10,000 11,80,10,000
Detail of equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up held by the holding company

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 01 April 2016
Mame of Shareholder Number of shares % holding in the Company Number of shares % holding in the Number of shares % holding in the
Company
Dish TV India Limited 11,80,10,000 100% 11,80,10,000 100% 11,80,10,000
Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 As at 01 April 2016
Name of Shareholder Number of shares % holding in the Company Number of shares % holding in the Number of shares % holding in the
Company
Dish TV India Limited 11,80,10,000 100% 11,80,10.000 100% 11,80,10.000
Other equity As at Asat As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 18,080 23,305 23305
Add: Profit/ (loss) for the year (9,202) (5.272)
Add: Remeasurement of post emplovment benefits 52 47
Balance at the end of the year 8.970 18.080 23,305
Equity contribution from dish tv
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.514 2,934 2,934
Add: Received during the year 1.980 580 -
Balance at the end of the year 5.494 3,514 2,934

14,464 21.594 26.239
Natore and purpose :
Retained earnings 3 /ﬁw Ty ?\ «8 s a-LC.L‘\J

All the profits made by the Company are ransferred 1o the retained eamings from statement of profit and loss

Other componeat of equity

Enquity contribution represents the corporate guarantee transaction with holding Company
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Borrowings {non-current)

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 | April 2016
Nan-convertibie debenture (Secured) 26,809 30,000 30,000
From banks (Seeured)
Term loans 1,66,279 3,094 16,600
Buyers’ credits T1A84 80,598 75,523
2,67,662 1,13,692 1,22,123
Less: Current maturities of' long tern bomewings (89,043} {55.559) {12,507)
IJSISIQ &133 1,09,616

Repayment terins, rate of intevest and nature of seeurity for the oulstanding long term bovrowing us on 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017, | April 2016
Nature of security

Non-convertible del

200 12.4% non-convertible debentures of s 100 lacs cach, is repayable afler three years from the date of allotment al gwith lutive interest at the rate of 12.4% poa.
IOOIljﬁmmnihlc&bcutmsnl‘Rsloﬂhcsewghmmyauaaﬂurlhmycm&mubdmof i longwitl ative fnterest at the rate of 11.5% p.a.
200 8.75% non-convertible debentures of Rs 100 lncs each, is repayabie aller three years from the date of alk longwith lative interest at the rate of 8.75% p.a.
Rate of interest and terms of repayment (8.75% nan ertible det )

Repayable afler three years from the date of all with put aption dates and ec a5 below:

Coupun Period Coupon Rate

15 Septemb 2017 1o 25 Seprember 2018 5.25%

26 Seplember 2018 10 25 Septeniber 2019 8.50%

26 September 2019 1o 25 Seplember 2020 |8.75%

Above debentures (i) to (iii) are secured by:
{a) First ranking pari-passu charge on all present and fture tangible i e. movable and current assets of the Issuer.

(b) The Promoter Group or any Pr forming part of existing | group shall hold at least 26% equity shaces of guarantor at all times during the tenure of (lie
Debenture. Further, a corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV India Linited,
Term loans-Secured

Term loan of Rs. 1,66,279 lacs ( 31 March 2017: Rs. 3,094 lacs, | April 2016: Rs. 16,600 lacs)

Term loun of Ks. 1,863 lacs from ING Vysyn Bank ( 31 March 2017: R, 3,094 Incs, 1 April 2016 Rs, 4,943 lacs), balance amount is repayable in 6 cqual quarterly
instatment (31 March 2017: 10 equal quarterly instalinent, | April 2016: 16 equal quarterly instalment) of Rs. 313 lacs (including interest) each with last instabnent payable
on September 2019 (31 March 2017; September 2019, | April 2016: Marcls 2020). The rate of interest is base rate: plus 1.75% per anmun,

Term loan of Rs. nil from NG Vysya Bank ( 31 March 2017 Rs. nil, | April 2016: Rs. 499 lacs), bak is repayable in nil instalment (31 March 2017: m!
mstalment, | April 2016: 1 equal quarterly instalmient) of Rs. 500 lacs (inchuding initerest). Last date of repayment was June 2016, The rate of inlerest is base rate plus 1.75%
per annums.

Tenn loan of Rs, nil from ING Vysya Bank ( 31 March 2017: Rs. oil, | April 2016: Rs, 125 lacs), balance amownt is payable in nil instal (31 March 2017 nil
instalment, | April 2016: 2 equal quarterly instalment) of [s. 63 lacs (including interest) each, Last date of repayment was August 2016, The rate of interest {5 base rate plig
1.75% per annum,

Term loan of Rs. nil from ING Vysya Bank ( 31 March 2017- Rs. nil, 1 April 2016: Rs. 3,096 lacs), balance ainount is repaynble in pil instaliment (31 March 2017: nil
instalment, | April 2016: 6 equal quarterly instaliment) of Rs. 625 lacs (including interest) cach. Last date of fepayment was April 2017. The rate of interest is base tate plus
1.75% per ammum.

Above facilities are secured by:
{a) First pari-passu charges on premi Juig (CPE), (both present and future), of the Company,
{b) First pari-passu charges on all current sssets and fixed assets of (he Company (both present snd fijture).

(¢ ) Assig of licies pertaining to CPE charged, current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company.
(d) DSRA to be crested upfront for one Quarier interest,
(e } Unconditional and It bie corp B fee is given by Dish TV India Limited,

Tenn foan of Ry, nil fiom ICIC] Bank ( 31 March 2017: Rs, mil, 1 April 2016; Rs. 2,983 lacs), balance amount is repayable in nil instalinent (31 March 2017; pil instalinent,
1 April 2016: 12 equal quarterly instalsment) of Rs, 250 lacs (including interest) each. Last date of repayment is March 2019, The rale of interest is base rate plus 2.5% per
AN

Tenm loan of s, nil from ICICT Bank ( 3] March 2017: Rs. nil, 1 April 2016: Rs. 4,954 lacs), bal is repayable in nil ingtal (31 March 2017: uil inssalment,
1 April 2016: 14 equal quarterly instalment) of Ry, 357 lacs (including interest) each. Last date of repayment is December 2020, The rate of interest is base rate plis 2.5%
per annim,

Above facilitics are secured by-

(a) First pari-passu charge on premises equipment (CPE) (both present anel finture).

{b) First pari-passu charges by way of liypothecation on the Company's entire current nssels which would include stocks of raw tals, semi finished and finished goods,
consumable stores and spares and such oiher movables, including book debts, bills, ling monies receivables (both present and fisture) in s form and manner
satisfaciory 1o the bank,

(¢ ) First pari-passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company.

(d) Assignment of i policies pertaining to CPE charged, current assels and movable fixed assets.

(e ) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV India Limited,

Acquired tenn loans of Rs, 164,416 facs as on 31 March 2018, d under business transfer ag (refer note 42), were secured by the first pari-passu charge on the
present and futire current assets of the acquired business, first pari-passu charge on movable / immavable fixed assets of the acquired business and were also secured by
personal g of | ter of acquired business of Dish TV,

Rate of interest and terms of repayment from respective bank

{a) Tenm loan of Rs. 11,461 Incs from IDBT Bank » balance ameunt is repayable in |1 quarterly imstalments of Rs. §50 lacs (including interest) for first 3 quarters, Rs. 1,063
lags (ineluding interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs. 1,169 lacs (ineluding interest) for next 4 quarters. Last date of repayment is January 2021, The rale of interesi i 13% per
annun

(b)Term loan of Rs. 20,234 lacs from [DBI Bank, balance amount is repaynble i 11 quarterly instabnents of Rs. | 500 lacs (including interest) for first 3 quarters, Rs. 8
laes (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs. 2,063 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Last date of repayment is January 2021. The rate of interes! is 404 [
anniim,

(e JTerm loan of Rs, 6,830 lncs from Central Bank of India, bal amount is repayible in 12 quarterly instalments of Rs, 500 Ines (includiug interest) for first d &
Rs. 625 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 688 Jacs (ingluging interest) for next 3 quarters and Rs. 270 lacs (including interast) for next | quarter. Last

repayment is March 2021 The rate of filerest is 12,25% per ann
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(¢1) Term loan of Rs. 14,479 lacs from Bank of Baroda, balance smount is repayable in 12 quarterly instalments of Ra, 1,000 lacs (including interest) on first 4 quaners, Rs.
1,250 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs, 1,375 lacs (including fnterest) for next 4 quarters, Last date of repayment is March 2021. The rate of interest is
13.50% per anmm,

(e) Tenm loan of Rs. 11,305 lucs from Canara Bank, balance minount is répayable in 11 q ly instal of Rs. 875 Incs {including wierest) for first 3 quarters, Bs. 1,094
Iacs {including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 1,203 lacs (including interest) for next 3 quarters and Rs. 703 lacs (including interest) for next | quarter. Last date of
repayment is January 2021, The rate of interest is 12 25% per annim.

(1) Term loan of Rs, 10,863 Iacs from Bank of india, balance amount is repayable in 12 quanterly instalments of Rs. 750 lacs (inchuding interest) for first 4 quarters, Rs. 938

lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs. 1,031 lacs (including inferest) for next 4 g Last date of repay is March 2021 The rate of interest is 13,20%
per annuum,

(g) Term loan of Rs. 10,122 Incs from Union Bank of ludia, balunce amount is repayable in 11 quarterly instalments of Rs. 750 lacs (imcluding interest) for first 3 quarters,
Rs. 938 lncs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs, 1,031 lacs (inclnding interest) for next 4 q Last date of repayment is January 2021. The rate of interest s
12,25% per annum.

(Iy) Term loan of Rs. 7,248 lacs from Bank of Maharashira, balance amount is repayable in 12 g ly instal of Ra. 500 Incs (including interest) for first 4 quarters, Rs,

625 taes (including imterest) for nest 4 quarters and Rs. 688 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters. Last date of repaymenl is March 2021 The rate of imterest is 12 15%
PEr RAMGHN,

(i) Term loan of Rs. 11,434 lacs from United Bank, bal amount is repayable in 13 q ly instal of Rs. 563 lacs (incloding imerest) for | quarter, Rs. 730 lncs
(including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 938 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs, 1,031 lncs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Last dale of repayment is
May 2021, The rate of interest is 12.40% per anmum.

(j) Term loan of Rs. 4,645 lacs from IDBI Bank, balance amount is repayable in 19 quarterly instalments of Rs. 94 lacs (including interest) for first 3 quarters, Rs. 1568 lacs
(including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 250 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs, 313 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs. 344 lacs (including
interest) for next 4 quarters. Last date of repayment is December 2072, The rate of interest is 14% per annum.

(k) Verm boan of Rs. 4,743 lacs from Karur Vysys Bank, bal amowl is repayable in 20 quanerly instal of Rs. 94 lacs (including interest) for first 4 quarters, Rs. 188
lacs (inchuding interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 250 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 313 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and R, 344 lacs
(including interest) for next 4 quarters. Last date of repayment is March 2023, The rate of interest is 12.45% per ainum.

(1) Term loan of Rs. 33,255 lacs from Yes Bank, balance amount is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments of Rs. 677 lncs (including interest) for first 4 quarters, Rs. 1,350 lacs
(ineluding interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 1,800 lncs (inclading interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 2,250 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 2477 lacs (including
interest) for next 3 quarters and Rs. 2,462 lacs for next | quartes. Last date of repayment is March 2023, The rate of interest is 12.33% per anntin,

{m) Term Ipan of Rs. 17,797 lacs, batance amount is repayable in 17 quarterly instalments of Rs. 375 lacs {including intercst) For | quarter, Rs. 750 lacs (including interest)
for next 4 quarters, Rs, 1,000 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters, Rs. 1,250 lacs (including interest) for next 4 quarters and Rs. | 375 lacs (incloding interest) for next
4 quarier. Last dnte of repayment is June 2022. The rate of interest is 14.10% per annum

Buver's erediis-Secuyed

Facility 0 Rs. 19,354 lacs from [DBI Bank (31 March 2017: Rs. 43,686 lacs, | April 2016: Rs. 46,335 lacs)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credit of Rs. 19,354 lacs comprises of several loan transactions starts ranging between September 2015 to January 2018 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling
ranging between My 2018 1o January 2019,

Interest o Rs. 4,053 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalinents ranging from Libor plus 105 bps to Libor plus 115 bps.

Interzst on Rs. 15,301 lacs buyer’s eredit is payable in yearly instal ging from Libor plus 35 bps to Libor plas 120 bps,

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Buyer's credit of Rs. 43,686 lacs comprises of several Joan 1r ions staris ing b July 2014 to February 2016 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling
ranging between February 2017 to November 2018,

Asat ] April 2016

Buyer's eredit of Rs. 46,335 Incs comprises of several loan iransactions starts ranging between July 2014 to Februnry 2016 and repayable in fall on matunty dates falling
ranjzing between February 2017 to November 2018,

Above fcilities arc securcd by:

(a) First pari-passu charpe on all present and future and i ble assets, including but not limited to inventory of sel-top-boxes and accessories ete., book debts,
operiting cash Nows, receivables, issi of wi natura and wherever arising, present and future, and on all infangibles assets including but not limited 1o
goodwill and uncalled capital, present and future, of the Company.

(b} Corporale guarantee is given by Dish TV India Limited and a persanal by key i | in respect of this lean.

Facility of Rs. 29,463 lacs from ICICI Bank {31 March 2017: Rs. 21,547 lacs, | April 2016 Rs. 18,202 lacs)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credil of Rs 29,463 lacs comprises of scveral loan transactions siars ranging between December 2015 (o Janunry 2018 and repayable in fill on maturity dates falling
between July 2018 1o May 2020

Interest on Rs. 29,317 Incs buyer's credil is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 64 bps to Libor plus 115 bps. Inerest on s 146 lacs buyer's credit is
payable in yearly instalinents ranging from Libor plus 36 bps to Libor phus 120 bps,

For the year ended 31 March 2017

a) Buyer's. credit of Rs. 14,645 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between July 2014 to June 2016 and repayuble in full on maturity dates falling between
April 2017 to February 2019.

Initerest an Rs, 10,530 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 75 bps 1o Libor plus 115 bps, Interest on Rs. 4,115 lacs buyer's credit is
payable in yearly instalmens ranging from Libor plus 50 bps fo Libor plus 120 bps.

b) Buyer's credit of Rs. 6.902 lacs comprise of several loan t ! ping & July 2014 to June 2016 and repayable in fill on ity date falling between
Cretober 2017 to January 2018,

Interest is payeble quarterly instalment ranging &t Libor plus 208 bps.

Asat [ April 2016

#) Buyer's credit of Rs. 11,209 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between July 2014 10 June 2016 and repayable in Fall on maturity dates falling betwesn
Mareh 2017 1o Seplember 2018,

Interest on Rs. 4,597 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging From Libor plus 75 bps to Libor plus 115 bps. Imtercst on R, 6,612 lacs buyer's credil is
payable in yearly instal ing from Libor plus 99 bps to Libor plus 120 bps.

b) Buyer’s credit of Rs, 7,083 lacs comprise of several loan | tons ranging b July 2014 10 June 2016 and repayable in full on maturity date Fatling between
October 2017 to January 2018,

Interest is payable quarterly instalmen| ranging at Libor plus 208 bps.

Above facility is secured by:

(&) Firsl pari-passu charpe on c premises equip {CPE) (both present and future).
{b) First pari-passu charges by way of iypothecation on the Company's entire current assels which would include stock of raw materinls, semi finished and [ighi
comsumable stores nnd spares and such other movables, including book

satisfactory 10 the bank, ¥

(c ) First pari-passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Coinpany.

NE W\
{4} Assignment of ",EoCPEchargqﬁ:,mmmmapw,l}‘;g@fn\
; 10

(e ) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV Indi Limited. ||~ 19
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Facility of Rs. 17,201 lacs from Yes Bank (31 March 2017: Rs. 11,997 lacs, | April 2016; Rs. 7,763 lacs)

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2018

Buyer's eredit of Rs. 17,201 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between February 2016 to February 2018 and repaynble in full on naturity dates falling
ranging between September 2018 1o April 2020.

Interest on Rs. 17,201 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 65 bps to Libor plus 115 bps.

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Buyer's credit of Rs. 11,997 lacs comprises of several loan transgclions ranging between November 2014 1o April 2016 and repayable in full on meturity dates falling
between July 2017 to November 2018 payable in half yearly instalments at Libor plus 78 bps ta 115 bps.

Asat L April 2016

Buyer's credit of Rs. 8,047 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between November 2014 to April 2016 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling ranging
hetween July 2017 to November 2018 payable in half yearly instalments at Libor plus 89 bps to 115 bps.

Above fucility is secured by:

(a) First pari-passu charges on ¢ premi Juip (CPE) (both present and future).

(b) First pari-passu charges on all current assets including stock of raw materials, semi tinished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movable
(c ) First pari-passu charges on all movable and immiovable fixed assets (both present and future),

(d) Assignment of insurance policies pertaining to CPE charged, current assets and movable fixed assets,

(e ) Corparate puarantes is given by Dish TV India Limited,

Facility of Rs. 5,464 lacs from ING Vysya Bank including ( 31 March 2017 Rs. 3,368 lacs, | April 2016 Rs. 3,133 lacs)

Far the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credil of Rs. 5464 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between January 2016 to December 2017 und repayable in full on malurity dates falling
between June 2018 to April 2020,

Inferest on Rs, 5,049 lacs buyer's eredit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor phs 64 bps 1o Libor plus 78 bps.

Interest on Rs. 415 lacs buyer's credil is payable in yearly instalments ranging from Libar plus 19 bps to Libor plus 130 bps.

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Buyer's credil of Rs. 3,368 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between December 2013 to July 2016 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling between
July 2016 10 March 2019,

Interest on Rs. 2,864 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 75 bps to Libor plus 78 bps.

Interest on Rs. 504 lacs buyer's credit is payabie in yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 100 bps to Libor plus 130 bps.

Asat | April 2016

Buyer's credit of Rs. 3,133 lags comprises of several loan transactions ranging between December 2013 to January 2016 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling
ranging between July 2016 to December 2018

Interest on Ry, 429 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Liber plus 75 bps to Libor plus 125 bps.

Interest on Rs. 2,704 lacs buyer's credit is payable in yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 99 bps to Libor plus 150 bps

Above facility is secured by:

(a) First pari-passu charges on e Premises equiy (CPE), (both present and future), of the Company,

(b) First pari-passu charges on all current assets and fixed assets of the Company (both prescat and future).

(c ) Assignment of insurance policies pertaining to CPE charged, current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company,

(d) DSRA to be created upfront for one Quarter interest:

(¢ ) Corporate guarantee s given by Dish TV India Limited.

Buyer's eredit of Rs. 2 lacs from Indusind Bank ( 31 Masrch 2017: Ra.nil, | April 2016: Rs. nit )
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credit of Rs. 2 lacs comprises of several loan transactions ranging between October 2017 fo March 2018 and repayable in full on maturity dates talling ranging
between April 2018 to September 2018,

Interest on buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 30 bps ta Libor plus 85 bps,
Above facility is secured by:

(a) First pari-pagsu charges on entire current assets and fixed asscts of the Company (both present and future),
(b) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV India Limited.

Otlser financial liabilities (non-current ) As at As at Asal
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Interest acerued hut not due on borrowings 4,483 9068 4 845
Derivatives not designated as hedge - principal swap - 1,723 588
4483 10,791 5,433
Provisions (nen-current) Asat Asar As at
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 L April 2016
Provisions for employee benefits
Leave encashment 916 435 375
Gratwity (refer note- 43) 1,774 784 603
2,690 1,219 978
Other non current lisbilities As at Asat il . Asat
31 March 2018 HMareh 2007 B 1 Apriiaote
=
Income received in advance 10,735
10,735
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A)

B)

(i)

)

@

{it)

(i)

(iv)

Rorrowings (current) As at Asat Asat

Secured 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Frum banhs

Cash eredits 3,203 - -

Term loan 4,565 - -

Buyers credit 23,667 - 184

Bill discounting facility 1384 - -
]1219 - 284

Cash eredit

The Company has taken cash credit facility of Rs. 3,303 lacs (31 March 2017 Rs. nil, | April 2016: Rs, nil) for general business purposes from Axis bank. The rate of interest
is 3 month MCLR+ 1.70%

Ahowe facility 1s secured by:

(a) First pari-passu charges on consumer premises cquipment (CPE) {both present and future);

(b) First pari-passu charges on all current assets including stock of rw materials, semi finished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movable
including book debts, bills, outstanding monies receivables (both present and future);

(e ) 'First pari-passu charges on all movable and immovable fixed assets (both present and fulure);

(d) Assig tofi policies pertaining to CPE charged, current assels and movable fixed assets, y
Term
Acquired term loans of Rs. 4,564 lacs as on 31 March 2018, assumed under busi ik L (refer note 42), were secured by the first pari-passu charge on the

present and future current assets of the acquired business, first pari-passu charge on movable / immoyable fixed nssets of the acquired business and were also sceured by
persomal guarantee of promoter of acquired business of Dish TV.

Rate of interest and terms of repayment

Term loan of Rs. 4,565 lncs from Yes Bank, balance amoun! is fully repayable on 31 May 2018, The rate of interest is 12.33% per annum.

Buver Credit- Secured

Facility of Rs. 5,052 lacs from IDBI Bank (31 March 2017: Rs. nil, | April 2016; Rs. nil)

Far the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credit of Rs. 5.052 lacs comprises of several loan transactions starts ranging between September 2015 to January 2018 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling
ranging between May 2018 1o January 2019.

Interest on Rs. 4,053 lacs buyer's credit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 105 bps to Libor plus 115 bps.

Interest on Re. 999 lacs buyer's credit is payable in yearly instalments ranging from Liber plus 35 bps to Libor plus 120 bps.

Above facilities are secured by,
(2} First pari-passu charge on all present and future moveable and immovable assets, including bul not limited to inventory of set-top-baxes and accessories elc., book debts,
operating cash flows, receivables, commissions, of whatever nature and wh arising, 1 and future, and on al intangibles assets including but not limited 1o

goodwill and uncalled capital, present and future, of the Company.

(b} Corporate guarantes is given by Dish TV India Limited and a p | guarantee by key perial p | in respect of this loan,

Facility of Rs. 1,299 lacs from ICICI Bank (31 March 2017: Rs. nil, | April 2016 Rs, nil}

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's eredit of Rs 1,299 Iacs comprises of several loan transactions starts ranging between December 2015 to. January 2018 and repayable in full on matrity dates falling
between July 2012 to May 2020.

Interest on Rs. 1,299 Tacs buyer's credit is payable in hall yearly instalments ranging [rom Libor plus 64 bps to Libar plus 115 bps.

Above facility is secured by:
(a) First pari-passu charge on premises equip (CPE) (both present and future).
(b} First pari-passu charges by way of hypothecation on the Company's entire 1t assels which would include stock of raw materials, semi finished and finished good,

consumable stores and spares and such other movables, including book debts, bills, outstanding monies receivables (both present and future) in & form and manner

satisfactorv to the bank.
(¢ ) First pari-passu charge on all movable fixed assets of the Company.

() Assig tof i ¢ pol pertaining lo CPE charged, current asseis and movable fixed assets.

(¢ ) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV Indin Limited.

Facility of Rs 3,467 lacs from Yes Bank { 31 March 2017: Rs. nil, 1 April 2016: Rs. 284 lacs)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credit of Rs, 3,467 lacs comprises of severnl loan transactions ranging between February 2016 1o February 2018 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling mnging.
between September 2018 to April 2020

Interest on Rs. 3,467 Ines buyer's eredit is payable in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 65 bps to Libor plus 115 bips.

Asat 1 April 2016

Buyer's credit of Rs. 284 lacs comprises of several loan i ging bet N ber 2014 1o April 2016 nnd repayable in full on maturity dates falling ranging
between July 2017 to November 2018 payable in half yearly instalments at Libor plus 89 bps to 115 bps.

Above facility is secured by:

{n} First pari-passu charges on consumer premises equipment (CPE) (both present and future).

(b) First pri-passu charges on all current assets including stock of rasw maerials, semi finished and finished goods, consumable stores and spares and such other movable
including book debis, bills, outstanding monies receivables (both present and future).

(¢ ) First pari-passu charges on all moveble and immovable fixed assets (both present and future).

(d) Assignment of insurance policies pertaining to CPE charged, current assets and movable fixed assets,
(e ) Corporate guarantee is given by Dish TV India Limited.

Facility of Rs. 7,637 lacs from TNG Vysya Bank including ( 31 March 2017: Rs. nil, | April 2016 Rs. nil)
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credit of Rs. 7,637 lacs comprises of several loan
between June 2018 1o April 2020,

Interest on Rs. 5,049 tacs buyer's credit is payable in hall yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 64 bps to Libor plus 78 bps.
Interest on Rs, 2,588 lacs buyer's credil is payable in yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 19 bps to Libor plus 130 bps.
Above facility is secured by:
(#) First pari-passu charges on ¢ I iy
(b) First pari-passu charges on all current assets and fixed asse AheCanipe

(¢ ) Assignment of insurance policies periaining to CPEPEW rd movable fixed nssets of the Company.
{d) DSRA 1o be created upfront for one Quarter iniemsi?'.' "'r 0 l0:
(e ) Corporate guaranice is given by Dish TV India Livttel [ ©- ™) oy

1 42

ging bet January 2016 to December 2017 and repayable in Tull an maturity dates falling

balh present and future), of the Company,
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Buyer's credit of Rs. 6,212 lacs from Indusind Bank (31 March 2017: Rs.nil , 1 April 2016 Rs. nil )

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Buyer's credil of Rs. 6,212 lacs comprises of severn! loan 1 tions zanging bel October 2017 to March 2018 and repayable in full on maturity dates falling ranging
between April 2018 (o September 2018,

Intercst on buyer's credit is payuble in half yearly instalments ranging from Libor plus 30 bps to Libor plus 85 bps.

Above lucility is secured by:

(#) Fiest pari-passu charges on entire curment nssets and fixed assets of the Company (both present and future),

{b) Carporate guaraniee is given by Dish TV India Limited.

Bill di facili
Bill discounting facility, having outsianding amount of Rs. 1,384 lacs as at 31 March 20 18.assumed under business transfer agreement (refer note 42), were secured by the
first pari-passu charge on the present and future current assets of the acquired business, first pari-passu charge on movable / immovable fixed assets of the acquired business

and were alsa secured by personal gu ol f ef acquired b of Dish TV
This facility carries rate of interest ranging from 10.75% p.a. to 12.5% pa
Reconciliation of liabilitics arising from financing activities
Particulnrs Borrowings (nen-current) Borrowings (current) Tatal
Asat 1 April 2017 ' 1,13,692 - 1,13,602
Cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings 53383 32,919 86,302
Repayment of borrowings (75,143) (75,143)
Non-cash;
Acquired under busi bination (refer note 42) 1,70,363 1.70,363
Foreign currency flucuation impact 1,616 . 1,616
Impact of borrowings measured st amortised gost 3,751 - 3,751
As at 31 Mareh 2018 2,67,662 32919 3,00,581
Trade payables As at Asal As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outsianding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 11,945 4,474 2426
11,945 4,474 2426

Dues to small and micro eaterprises pursuant 1o section 22 of the Micro, Small snd Medium Enterprises Development ('MSMED) Act, 20064

Factisiilai Asat Asal Asat

gk 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 01 April 2016

1) the principal amount and the interest due therean remaining unpaid to any
supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
1t} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the

|amounts of the payment made 1o the suppli beyond the appointed day during - - "
each accounting year,

iii) the of i due and payable for the period ol delay in making

payment (which have been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the year) buf - - -
without adding the i specified under this Act;

vy the ofi | and ining unpaid at the end of each

accounting year, and

V) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years. until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
1o the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

# The management has identified micro and small enterprises as defined under Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmient Act, 2006 (MSMED) on the basis of
informution made available by the supplier or vendors of the Company. Based on the information available with the Company, us at the year end, there are no dues 1o micro
and small Enterprises that are reportable under the MSMED Act, 2006,

Other financial liabilities (eurrent)* Asal Agat Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Interest accrued bui not due on bomowings 1,623 780 564
Current maturities of long tenn borrowings (refer note 23 and 29.1) 89,043 55,559 12,507
Advances from related parties 3,14 826 73912 58,581
Employee refated liabilities 558 371
Capital creditors 18,566 40,543
Comimission acerued 2477 2,557
Accrued loss on forward contracts * .
Derivatives not designated as hedge - principal swap 1,875 733
Bookfother overdraft 17,296 -

_ 446,264 174,461

off of fair values,
a7 R - SS
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Current maturities of long term borrowings
Non-tunvertible debenture (Secured)
From banks

Term loans
Buyers' eredils

Other current linhilities

Income received in advance
Statutory dues

Advances/ deposits received
Provisions (current)

Provisions for employee benefits

Leave encashment
Gratuity (refer note- 43)

Current tax lahilities (net)

Provision for income tax

10,000 20,000 -
2 1,231 5,312
46,266 34,328 7,195
89,043 55,559 12,507
Az at Asat Asal
31 Mareh 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
28,052 13,349 12,011
561 648 608
28,884 13,277 11,924
5?19“? 27,274 24,543
As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
35 15 13
34 8 7
Eg 23 20
As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
P = 1,762

1,762
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Revenue from operations

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Income from Direct to Home (DTH) subseribers:

-Infra support services 1,06,267 1,07,116

-Lease rentals 300 1,420
Sales of customer premises equipment (CPE) and accessories 28 184
Advertisement income 3,265 3,080
Other operating income 1,161 754

1,11,021 1,12,554
34 Other income
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Interest income from:

- fixed deposits/ margin accounts 202 183
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 848 1,860
Gain on mutual funds 25 519
Liabilities written back 111 42
Miscellaneous income 272 131

1,458 2,735
35 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (CPE related accessories / spares)
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Opening stock 1,012 936
Less: Closing stock 895 1,012
117 (76)
36 Operating expenses
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Call center charges 11,000 8,850
Other operating expenses 3,515 3,834
14,515 12,684

R = g\.«\cL\»‘




37 Employee benefit expenses

38
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Salary, bonus and allowance
Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payments to employees
Staff welfare

Recruitment and training expenses

Finance costs

Interest on:

-Debentures

-Term loans from banks

-Buyer's credits from banks

-Others
Expense from financial guarantee contracts
Other borrowing costs

Depreciation /amortisation

Depreciation from continuing operation
Amortisation from continuing operation

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
7,866 8,079
4dd 453
16 4
47 60
33 88
8,406 8,684
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3,796 4,223
289 875
2,663 2,224
3,880 3,794
1,802 2117
1,220 1,791
13,650 15,024
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
63,680 61,010
337 10
64,017 61,020

'

[SWACS




40 Other expenses

Electricity charges
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery
- Consumer premises equipments
- Building
- Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional fees
Printing and stationary
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Service and hire charges
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Business promotion expenses
Customer support services
Commission
Freight, cartage and demurrage
Bad debts and balances written off
Provision for expected credit loss
Loss on sale/ discard of property, plant and equipment
Loss on sale/ discard of capital work-in-progress (net)
Miscellaneous expenses

For the year For the year
ended ended

214 162

669 678

53 13

785 887

6 11

41 13

38 75

5 7

205 172

101 33

253 222

1,246 1,241

682 665

610 817

3,383 4,550

2,743 1,975

8,828 14,851

4 2

1 i

23 19

810 0
666
1,593
22,959




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

41 Group structure
Particulars Country of Percentage of
incorporation mwnership
Name of the holding company
Dish TV India Limited India 100%

42 Business Combination
A. Business Transfer Agreement

The Board of Directors approved the acquisition of the [nfra Support Services Division of Dish TV India Limited (Dish TV)
under a Business Transfer Agreement, w.c.f closing business hours of 31 March 2018 along with all assets, liabilities including
employees, contracts, licenses, goodwill, consents and approvals relating to business undertaking on a going concern basis,

The acquisition on business undertaking was approved by the sharcholders by passing of Special Resolution on 6 February 2018 .
The purpose of acquisition by Dish Infra is to operate the Infra business as a separate business unit,

B. Details of purchase consideration, net assets acquired and adjustment to reserves

Particulars Amount
Payable in cash 201,940
Total purchase consideration 201,940

Acquisition-related cost

The company has not incurred any acquisition on legal fees and due diligence costs.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following table summaries the recogniscd amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

Particulars Amount
Assets :

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 125,365
Customer and distributor relationships 14,778
Capital work in progress 6,285
Goodwill 236,405
Other net current assets (102,269)
Deferred tax assets 54,247
Total Assets (A) 334,811
Liabilities :

Long term debt 132,871
Total Liabilities (B) 132,871
Net assets (A-B) 201,940

Note A : Measurement of fair values

The acquisition of infra Division from Dish TV qualifies to be a common control business combination. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities are taken over at their carrying amounts. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets
or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies,

Adjustment to Reserves

Particulars Amount
Consideration transferred 201,940
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired 201,940

Adjustment to reserves e

the Dish Infra's results.

.




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs, lacs, unless otherwise stated)

43 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefits”

Defined contribution plans

An amount of Rs. 412 lacs (previous year Rs, 417 lacs) and Rs. 6 lae (previous year Rs. 4 lacs) for the year, have been recognized
as expenses in respect of the Company's contributions to Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance Fund respectively,
deposited with the government authorities and have been included under “Employee benefits expenses”,

Defined benefit plaus

Gualuity is payable to all cligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of the
provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s Scheme, whichever is more beneficial,

Risk Exposure

The defined benefit plans are typically based on certain assumptions and expose company fo various risk as follows:

a) Salary Risk- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability, Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future

valuations will also increase the liability,

b) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment
discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability,

¢) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

return on assets lower than the

d)

Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the

liabilities.

¢) Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at

subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s Hability.

The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and

Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Changes in present value of obligation

31 March 2018

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 792 625
Addition due to BTA 977 s
Interest cost 58 49
Current service cost 200 214
Benefits paid (78) (70)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation (141) (71)
Acquisition adjustment (net) - 45
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1,808 792
Short term 34 8
Long term 1,774 784
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2017

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation

200 214
58 49
258 263
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Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Expenses recognized in the Statement of other comprehensive income

Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised in the year (141} (71)

(141) (71)
The principal assumplions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Discount rale 7.80% 7.35%
Salary escalation rate (per annum) 10.00% 10,00%
Withdrawal rates
Age- Upto 30 years 13% 13%
31-44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Mortality rate IALM (2006 - 08)]  1ALM (2006-08)

Discount rate: The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yiclds of Indian government securities as at the

balance sheel date for the estimated term of the obligation,

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, promotion

and other relevant factors.

Maturity Profile of defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2018:

Year Amount
a) Oto | Year 9
b) 1 to 2 Year 14
) 2to3 Year 20
d) 3104 Year 19
e) 4105 Year 47
) 5to 6 Year 20
3 6 Year onwards 702
Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation for significant actuarial assumptions
Particulars Asat

31 March 2018

Impnct of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Decrease in liability due to increase of 0.50 %
Inerease in liability due to decrease of 0.50 %
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Increase in liability due to increase of 0.50 %
Decrease in liability due to decrease of 0.50 %

1,808
149
(134)

1,808
146
(132)
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Other long term employment benefits

The liability towards compensated absence for the year ended 31 March 2018 base on

projected unit credit method stood at Rs. 951 lacs (previous year Rs. 450 lacs).

The principal assumptions used in

determining compensated absences are shown below:

the actuarial valuation carried out by using

Particulars As at As at
Retirement age (vears) 60 60
Mortality rate IALM (2006-08)|  IALM (2006-08)
Ages

Withdrawal rates

Age- Upto 30 years 13% 13%
31-44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 years 1% 1%
Leave

Leave availment rate 3% -
Leave Lapse rate while in service Nil -
Leave Lapse rate on exit Nil -
Leave encashinent rate while in service 5% -

44 Fair Value Measurements
A. Fair value hierarchy

The financial assets and Habilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of signifi

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using valuation technique which
maximise the use of observable market data rely as low as possible on enlity specific estimate,

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instr

B. Financial instruments measured at fair value
Rl

position are divided in to three levels of fair
cant inpults to the measurement, as follows:

ument is included in level 3

31 March 2018 Date of Valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Mutual funds 31 March 2018 - - -
31 March 2017 Date of Valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

|Mutual funds 31 March 2017 1,481 - -
01 April 2016 Date of Valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Mutual funds 1 April 2016 8,203 - -
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C. Fair value of financial assets and Habilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Carrying | Fair value | Carryin, Fair value Carrying | Fair value

Financial assets

Financial guarantee assels Level 3 1,274 1,377 314 314 1,239 1,239

Other financial assets Level 3 2,052 2,052 18 18 55 55

Total financial assets 3,326 3,429 332 332 1,294 1,294

Financial liabilities

Barrowings (including interest)| Level 3 183,102 183,102 67.201 67,201 114,461 114,461

Other financial liability Level 3 - - 1,723 1,723 588 588

Total financial liabilities 183,102 183,102 68,924 68,924 115,049 115,049

The above disclosures are presented for non-current financial assets and liabilitics. The carrying value of current financial assets
and liabilities (cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other rcceivables, trade payables and other current financial
lisbilities) represents the best estimate of fair value,

45 Financial risk management
A. Financial instruments by category

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

FYOCI|FVTPL| Amortised | FVOCI|FVTPL| Amortised [FYOCI| FVTPL | Amortised
Cost Cost Cost

Financial assets

Investment - - - - 1,481 - - B.203 -

Financial guarantee assets - - 1,274 - - 314 = - 1,239

Trade receivables - - : 1,815 - - 449 - B 778

Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,996 - - 4,459 - - 6,874

Other financial assets - - 18,934 - - 2,178 - - 4,280

Total financial assets - - 25,019 - 1,481 7,400 - 8,203 13,171

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 306,687 - - 123,540 - - 127,816

Trade payables - - 11,945 - - 4,474 - - 2,426

Other financial liabilities - - 355,599 - - 119,845 - - 92,328

Total financial liabilities - - 674,231 - - 247,859 - - 222,570

B. Risk management
The Company is exposed to various risk in relation to financial instruments. The main types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk.
The Company’s risk management is coordinated in close co-operation with the board of directors, and focuses on securing
Company’s short to medium term cash flows.

This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk and the related
impact in these standalone financial statements.

a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation to the company causing a

financial loss. The Company’s exposure lo credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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b)

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of the
counterparties and incorporates this information into jts credit risk controls,

A: Low credit risk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset group Basis of categorization Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Investment, Cash and cash equivalents, 12 month expected credit loss

Loans, security deposits, other bank balances
and other financial assets

Moderate credit risk Trade receivables 12 month expected credit loss
High credil risk Trade receivables Life time expected credit loss or fully
provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter
party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual
credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic conditions,

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 01 April 2016

Low credit risk Investment, Cash and cash 23,204 8,432 20,596
equivalents, Loans, security
deposits, other bank balances
and other financial assels

Moderate credit risk Trade receivables 1,815 449 778
High credit risk Trade receivables 43 19 -

Concentration of {réde receivables
The Company has widespread customers and there is o concentration of trade receivables.

Expected credit losses
The company recognises lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables using a simplified approach and uses historical
information to arrive at loss pereentage relevant to each category of trade receivables,

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
As at 31 March 2018

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net—‘
carrying amount at losses of impairment
default provision
Trade receivables 1,858 (43) 1,815
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As at 31 March 2017

Particulars Estimated gross Expected eredit | Carrying amount net
carrying amount at losses of impairment
default pravision
Trade receivables 468 (19) 449
Asat 1 April 2016
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit | Carrying amount net
earrying amount at losses of impairment
default provision
Trade receivables 778 - 778

Reconciliaiion of loss allowance provision — Trade receivable

Particulars Carrying amount net of
impairment provision

Loss allowanee on April 01, 2016 -

Changes in loss allowance (19)

Loss allowance on March 31,2017 (19)

Changes in loss allowance (23)

Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 (43)

b) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the Company’s business activitics may not be available, Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilitics)
and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. Short term liquidity requirements comprises mainly of
trade payables and employee dues arising during normal course of business as on each balance sheet date. Long- term
liquidity requirement is assessed by the management on periodical basis and is managed through internal accruals and through

funding commitments from shareholders.
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31 March 2018 Less than 1 year I to 5 years Later than 5
Years
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Borrowing 123,585 183,102 -
Trade Payable 11,945 -
Other financial liabilities 40,773 - -
31 Mareh 2018 Less than | year I to 5 years Later than 5
years
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Borrowing 56,339 67,201 -
Trade Payable 4,474 . -
Other financial liabilities 44,210 - -
31 March 2018 Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Later than 5
years
Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in lacs
Borrowing 13,355 114,461 -
Trade Payable 2,426 - -
Other financial liabilitics 33,159 = -
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¢) Market Risk

i

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk exposure:

Rs. in Lacs
As at 31 March 2018
Particulars Currency type
EURO UsSD
Loans & Advances recoverable - 34
Financial assets (A) - 34
Loans and borrowings - 96,572
Other current financial liabilities - 11,309
Financial liabilities (B) - 107,881
Net exposure (A-B) = (107,847)
As at 31 March 2017
Particulars Currency type
EURO USD
Loans & Advances recoverable 4 15,091
Financial assets (A) 4 15,091
Loans and borrowings - 13,776
Other current financial liabilities - 13,172
Finaneial liabilities (B) - 26,948
Net exposure (A-B) 4 (11,857)
As at 01 April 2016
Particulars Currency type
EURO uUSD
Loans & Advances recoverable 26 231
Financial assets (A) 26 231
Loans and borrowings - 26,040
Other current financial liabilities - 24,540
Financial liabilities (B) - 50,580
Net exposure (A-B) 26 (50,349)

Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments and the impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts, foreign

exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges.

Particulars

31 March 2018

Currency type

EURO usD
Foreign exchange rate increased by 5% (previous year 5%) - (5,396)
Foreign exchange rate decreased by 5% (previous year 5%) - 5,396

Asset group Impact on Profit/(Loss)
Currency type
EURO UsD
Foreign exchange rate increased by 5% (previous year 5%) (0) (2,101)
Foreign exchange rate decrcased by 5% (previous year 5%) 0 2,101
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il. Interest rate risk
Liabilities
The Company’s fixed rate borrowings arc carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as

defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in
market interest rates,

a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Asset group

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

01 April 2016

Variable rate borrowings 265,995 83,692 92,408
Fixed rate borrowings 34,586 30,000 30,000
Total borrowings 300,581 113,692 122,408

b) Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates

Asset group

Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points (31 March 2017 50 bps)

(1,330)

(418)

Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points (31 March 2017 50bps)

1,330

418

Assets

The company's fixed deposits are carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Indu AS 107,
since neither the carrying amount nor the futire cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

iii. Price risk
The exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classificd in the balance sheet either as fair
value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss.

Further the company is not exposed to any price risk as none of the equity securities held by the company are classified as

fair value through profit and loss or fair value through OCI.
Kooy Py, 5L o
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46

47

48

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value,

As at 31 March, 2018, the Company has only one class of equity shares and has reasonable debt. Consequent to such capital
structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the

Company allocates its capital for distribution as dividend or re-investment into business based on its long term financial plans.

I'he gearing ratios were as follows:

Asset group 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
Net debt 300,581 113,692 122,408
Total equity 26,265 33,395 38,040
Net debt to equity ratio 11.44 3.40 3.22

The company has not declared dividend in current year and previous year

Taxation

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax expense (including earlier years) 417 1,284
Deferred tax (including carlier years) (2,735) (7,420)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year (2,318) (6,136)
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss
Profit before tax (11,520) (11,407)
Income tax using company's domestic tax rate* 34.608% 34.608%
Expected tax expense (A) (3,987) (3,948)
Tax effect of adjustments fo reconcile expected income tax expense to reported
income tax expense
Tax impact of expenses on account of permanent differences 798 (1,914)
Tax pertaining to prior years (196) (274)
Others 1,067 -
Total Adjustments (B) 1,669 (2,188)
Total Income tax expense (2,318) (6,136)
*Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows;
Basic tax rate 30.00% 30.00%
Surcharge (% of Tax) 12.00% 12.00%
Cess (% of tax) 3.00% 3.00%
Applicable rate 34.608% 34.608%

Segmental information

The Company is in the business of providing Direct to Home (‘DT H") and teleport services primarily in India, As the Company’s
business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, disclogures in terms of Ind AS 108 on

“Operating Segments” are not applicable,
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a)

b

c)

=

Related party disclosures

Related parties where control exists: Holding Compuny
Dish TV India Limited
Other related parties with whom the Company had transactiens:

Key management personnel (KMP) Mr. Jawahar Lal Gocel

Relative of key management personnel Mr. Gaurav Goel

relatives have significant influence

Enterprises over which key management personnel/ their  {I'T7 Cash Card Limited

Cyquator Media Services Private Limited (referred to as Cyquator)
Interactive Financial & Trading Services Private Limited

Essel Business Excellence Services Limited
Rama Associales Limited

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited
E-City Property Management & Services Private Limited

Transactions during the year with related parties:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Amount Amount
(i) With holding company
Revenue from operations and other income (net of taxes)
Dish TV India Limited 3,600 3.600
Purchase of goods & services
Dish TV India Limited 1120 3,120
Purchase of assets and liability (net consideration)
Dish TV India Limited 201,940
Reimbursement of expenses received
Dish TV India Limited 6,491 7.951
Loan received
Dish TV India Limited 148
Repayment of loan received
Dish TV India Limited 7.565 9.734
Amount collected en behalf of holding Company
Dish TV India Limited 177.831 215.746
Amount remitted out of collections made on behalf of holding company (Net)
Dish TV India Limited 132,737 190.681
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(ii) With other related parties
Revenue from operations and other income (Net of Tuxes)

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 185 162
Purchase of goods & services
I'1Z Cash Card Limiled 937 1,342
Cyquator Media Services Private Limiled - R
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited 597 521
Rama Associales Limited 44 27
E-City Property Management & Services Private Limited 18 g
Rent paid
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 180 148
Rama Associates Limited 1 1
Reimbursement of expenses paid
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 203 41
Loans
ITZ Cash Card Limited
(& Rs. 7,741) 49 &
Cyquator Media Services Private Limited
(* Rs 27.180) * 526
Refund received against loan given
Cyquator Media Services Private Limited - 90
ITZ Cash Card Limited
(@@ Rs. 41,297) 32 “
Interactive Financial & Trading Services Private Limited
(SRs. 1.517)

- 3

d) Balances at the year end:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Trade receivables (Including accruals)
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

Amount Amount
(i) With Holding Company
Issue of equity shares
Dish TV India Limited 11,801 11.801
Loan received
Dish TV India Limited 314.826 73.912
(ii) With other related parties:
Loans given
Cyquator Media Service Private Limited 1,098 1.0u8
ITZ Cash Card Limited 290 386
Zee Ententainment Enterprises Limited 9
Trade payables (Including provisions)
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited - 66
Essel Business Excellence Services Limited 195 112
E-City Property Management & Services Private Limited 2 ki
Rama Associate Limited 2] 3
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€)

a)

b)

Guarantees etc. given by related parties in respect of secured loans:
i) Asat 31st March 2018, personal guarantees by key managerial personal amounting to Rs, 30,000 lacs (previous year Rs.
30,000 lacs) are outstanding as at the year end,

i) As at 31st March 2018, corporate guarantee by Dish TV India Limited amounting to Rs. 250,438 lacs (previous year Rs.
278,710 lacs) are outstanding at the year end.

Lenses

Obligation on operating lease

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases taken for offices, residential premises,
transponder, ete. These leases are cancellable operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of
both the lessee and the lessor. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 11 months to 69 months. The details of asscts taken
on operating leases during the year are as under;

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Lease rental charges during the ycar 669 678

Assets given under operating lease
The Company has leased out assets by way of operating lease. The gross book value of such assets at the end of the year, their
accumulated depreciation and depreciation for the year are as given below:

Particulars As at

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Gross value of assets 203,375 35,112
Accumulated depreciation 58,971 31,320
Net block 144,404 3,792
Depreciation for the year 27,651 10,624

The lease rental income recognised during the year in respect of non-cancellable operating leases and minimum obligations on
long term non-cancellable operating lease receivable as per the rentals stated in the agreements are as follows:

Particulars For the year ended

; 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Lease rental income recognised during the year 300 1,420
Particulars Total future minimum lease rentals

receivable as at
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017

Within one year 9,942 299
Later than one year and not later than five years 10,630 137

Auditors’ remuneration

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
As auditors
-Statutory audit and limited review of quarterly results 14 14
-Reimbursement of expenses 4 1

Total 18 15
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a)

b)

Earnings per share
Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017
Profit for the year attributable to equity sharcholders (A) (9,202) (5,272)
Weighted-average number of equity shares (B) (nos) 118,010,000 118,010,000
Nominal value of cquity share (in Rs.) 10 10
Basic & diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) (A/B) (7.80) (4.47)

Contingent liabilities, litigations and commitments
Claims against the Company (including unasserted claims) not acknowledged as debt:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 01 April 2016
424 424 %
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt
Sales tax and Value added tax 5,558 2,322 152
Customs duty - 109 =

Commitments

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 01 April 2016

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account 15,332 82,648 75,575

First Time Adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company’s first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS,

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2016 (the date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance
sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions
of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected
the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes,

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from
previous GAAP to Ind AS.
Use of deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter 1o elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure ail of it roperty, plant and equipment and intangible
assels at their previous GAAP carrying value. El p (L
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G

Exchange differences on long-term foreign currency monetary items

Under previous GAAP, the company applied paragraph 46A of AS 11 whereby exchange differences arising from translation
of long-term foreign currency monetary items were capitalized/ deferred. On transition to Ind AS first time adopter is
permitted to continue policy adopted for accounting for such exchange differences recognised in the previous GAAP financial
statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period.

Under previous GAAP foreign exchange gain/ loss on long term foreign currency monetary items recognized upto 31 March
2016 has been deferred/ capitalized. Such exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency
monetary items and pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset are amortised over the remaining useful lives of the
assets. From accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2017, exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement
of leng-term foreign currency monetary items, acquired post 1 April 2017, pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset
are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made
for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies),
unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous
GAAP. The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not
required under previous GAAP

Investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are
met based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics on ly on
the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess elements of modified
time value of money i.c. the use of effective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of transition shall be the
new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption applies for financial liabilities as well.

Applying a requirement is impracticable when an entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so. It is
impracticable to apply the changes retrospectively if:

a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable;

b) The retrospective application or restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in
that period

The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to

distinguish objectively information about those estimates that existed at that time.

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity and total comprehensive income for prior periods. The following tables
represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
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Reconciliation of previous GAAP and Ind AS impact for Balance Sheet (1 April 2016)

Particulars Note Previous IND AS Ind AS
reference GAAP Adjustments
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Note | 154,800 5,400 160,200
Capital work-in-progress 37,695 (11,016) 46,679
Financial assets
Other financial assets Note 2 55 1,239 1,294
Deferred Tax Assets (net) Note 3 39,060 472) 38,588
Other non-current assets Note 9 8,730 (414) 8,316
260,340 (5,263) 255,077
Current assets
Inventories 936 - 936
Financial Assets
Investment 8,203 - 8,203
Trade receivables 778 - 778
Cash and cash equivalents 6,874 - 6,874
Other bank balances 2,289 - 2,289
Loans 107 - 107
Other financial assets Note 2 1,184 645 1,829
Other current assets Note 9 12,937 (519) 12,418
33,308 126 33,434
Total Assets 293,648 (5,137) 288,511
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11,801 - 11,801
Other Equity 30,986 (4,747) 26,239
42,787 (4,747) 38,040
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Note 9 115,354 (5,738) 109,616
Other financial liabilities Note 2 4,697 736 5,433
Provisions 978 - 978
Other non-current liabilities 598 - 598
121,627 (5,002) 116,625
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 284 - 284
Trade payables Note 6 2,410 16 2,426
Other financial liabilities Note 2 100,215 4,596 104,811
Provisions 20 - 20
Current tax liabilities 1,762 - 1,762
Other current liabilities 24,543 - 24,543
129,234 4,612 133,846
250,861 (390) 250,471
Total Equity & Liabilities 293,648 (5,137) 288,511
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Reconciliation of previous GAAP and Ind AS impact for Balance Sheet (31 March 2017)

Particulars Note Previous IND AS Ind AS
reference GAAP Adjustments
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Note | 160,722 12,320 173,042
Capital work-in-progress 76,264 (20,710) 55,554
Other intangible assets 106 - 106
Financial assets -
Other financial assets Note 2 18 314 332
Deferred Tax Assets (net) Note 3 46,284 (300) 45,984
Current Tax Assets (net) 1,133 - 1,133
Other non-current assets Note 4 8,764 (662) 8,102
293,291 (9,038) 284,253
Current assets
Inventories 1,012 - 1,012
Financial Assets
Investment Note 9 1,441 40 1,481
Trade receivables 449 - 449
Cash and cash equivalents ' 4,459 - 4,459
Other bank balances 936 - 936
Loans 169 - 169
Other financial assets Note 2 23 1,032 1,055
Other current assets Note 9 16,415 (84) 16,331
24,904 988 25,892
Total Assets 318,195 (8,050) 310,145
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 11,801 - 11,801
Other Equity 28,554 (6,960) 21,594
40,355 (6,960) 33,395
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

Borrowings Note 9 58,339 (206) 58,133
Other financial liabilities Note 5 8,327 2,464 10,791
Provisions 1,219 - 1,219
Other non-current liabilities 375 - 375
68,260 2,258 70,518

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 4,474 - 4,474
Other financial liabilities Note 2 177,809 (3,348) 174,461
Provisions 23 & 23
Other current liabilities 27,274 - 27,274
209,580 (3,348) 206,232

277,840 (1,090) 276,750

Tatal Equity & Liabilities 318,195 (8,050) 310,145
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Reconciliation of previous GAAP and Ind AS impact of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Particulars

Note Previous IND AS Ind AS

reference GAAP Adjustments
INCOME
Revenues fiom operations 112,554 - 112,554
Other income Note 7 286 2,449 2,735
Total Income 112,840 2,449 115,289
EXPENSES
Purchase of traded goods 644 - 644
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade (76) - (76)
Operating expenses 12,684 - 12,684
Employee benefits expense Note 6 8,624 60 8,684
Finance costs Note 4 12,373 2,651 15,024
Depreciation and amortisation of non-financial assets 58,247 2773 61,020
Other expenses 28,717 - 28,717
Total Expenses 121,213 5,484 126,697
Profit before exceptional item and tax (8,373) (3,035) (11,408)
Exceptional items - - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax (8,373) (3,035) (11,408)
Tax expense:
- Current Tax 1,284 - 1,284
- Deferred Tax Note 3 (7,224) (196) (7,420)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (2,433) (2,839) (5.272)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in Note 7 - 71 71
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability Note 7 - (24) (24)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (2,433) (2,792) (5,225)

Notes A

The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this

note,

by

e
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016

Particulars [ Note Reference | 31 March2017 | 1 April 2016
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous 40,355 42,787
GAAP

Adjustments:

Impact of employee share based payment at fair value Note 8 (53) (49)
Impact of financial liabilities at amortised cost Note 9 (3,017)+ (365)
Impact of derivative instruments carried at fair value Note 9 1,241 (1,167)
Impact of investments carried at fair value through profit Note 9 41 -
and loss

Impact on PPE Note 1 (8,389) (5,616)
Impact of remeasurements of post-employment benefit Note 5 (71) -
Prior period expense Note 6 - (16)
Tax impact on above adjustments Note 3 (272) (468)
Other Comprehensive income Note 7 46 -
Equity contribution from parent company Note 9 3,514 2,934
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per Ind AS 33,395 38,040

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars [ Note Reference | 31 March 2017

Net loss after tax as repnrteti under previous GAAP for 31 March 2017 (2,432)
Adjustments

Impact of financial instruments at amortised cost (593)
Impact of employee share based payment at fair value Note 8 (4)
Impact of recognition of financial guarantee contracts (2,059)
Impact of derivative instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss Note 9 2,408

Impact of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss Note 9 41

Impact on PPE Note | (2,773)
Impact of remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations Note 5 (71)
Prior period expense Note 6 16
Tax impact on above adjustments Note 3 196

Net profit after tax as per Ind AS (5,271)
Other Comprehensive income Note 7 46

Total comprehensive income after tax as per Ind AS (5,225)
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(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Al amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2017

Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 74,361 9,848 84,209

Net cash used in investing activitics (65,301) (9,702) (75,003)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,475) (146) (11,621)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,415) - (2,415)
Cash and cash equivalents at the 1 April 2016 6,874 - 6,874

Cash and cash equivalents at the 31 March 2017 4,459 - 4,459

Notes A
The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note

Note 1: Property, plant and equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
as recognized in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets and investment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has
elected to measure all of its property, plant and cquipment, intangible assets and investment property at their previous GAAP

carrying value.

Note 2: Corporate Guarantee

Under the previous GAAP, no adjustment were done on account of Financial guarantee take from parent company. Ind-AS
109 requires the guarantor to recognise the financial guarantee contract initially at its fair value and consider it as capital
contribution by parant company. Accordingly the company has recognised an asset in its separate financial statements for the
fair value of the financial guarantee received and Subsequent recognition of expense on a straight line basis and considered
this as a deemed capital contribution by its holding company

Note 3: Deferred Tax
Retained earnings has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustments with corresponding impact to deferred
tax, wherever applicable.

Note 4: Retained earning
Retained earnings as at 1 April 2016 has been adjusted consequent to all the Ind AS transition adjustments,

Note 5: Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.c. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the
net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.
Under the previous GAAP, these measurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year, accordingly an adjustment
has been done to reinstate the employee benefit cost for FY 2016-17 by the amount pertaining to actuarial gain & Loss and
same has been shown as other comprehensive income in the statement of Profit & Loss

Note 6: Prior period item

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was a prior period expense which relate to programming and other cost and
salary & bonus allowance pertaining to financial year 2015-16. Under Ind AS 8, financial statements are restated
retrospectively for correcting the recognition, measurement and disclosure of amounts of elements of financial statements as if
a prior period error had never occurred. Accordingly an adjustment has been made in the financial statement to take above
impact

Under previous GAAP prior period items were included in determination of net profits in which error pertaining to prior
period were identified. Under Ind AS, such items have been adjusted retrospectively by reinstating the amounts for respective
periods to which such errors related to, with the impact of such errors, i any, adjusted with balances as at 1 April
these pertain to period prior to that date. Following is the impact:




Dish Infra Services Private Limited

(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Operating and other expenses - 16
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,773

Total 2,773 16
Particulars 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Property, plant and equipment - 5,400
Capital work-in-progress - (11,016)
Total - (5,616)

Note 7: Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period,
unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are
shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit
obligation on account of actuarial gain and loss (Net of taxes)

Note 8: Employee Stock option plan

Under the previous GAAP, the Company had the option to measure the cost of equity-settled employee share-based plan
either using the intrinsic value method or using the fair value method. Under Ind AS, the cost of equity-settled share-based
plan is recognized based on the fair value of the options as at the grant date, accordingly ESOPs has been measures at fair
value and additional cost on account of employee cost has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Note 9:

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

Under previous GAAP, financial assets and security deposits paid were initially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently,
any finance income were recognized based on contractual terms. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially
recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between transaction price and fair value affects profit and loss unless it quantifies for recognition as some other type of asset,

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Under previous GAAP, financial liabilities were initially recognized at transaction price. Subsequently, any finance costs were
recognized based on contractual terms, Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost determined using the effective interest rate, Any difference between transaction price
and fair value affects profit and loss unless it quantifies for recognition as some other type of liability.
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(Formerly known as Xingmedia Distribution Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Rs, Iacs, unless otherwise stated)

55 Particulars of loans, guarantee or investment under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.
The Company has provided following loans, guarantee or investment pursuant to section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

Loan given

There are no outstanding, loan given by the Company.

Loans, Security or guarantee against loan

Nil

Investment

There are no investments by the Company other than those stated under Note 9(a) in the Financial Statements.

As per our report attached to the balance sheet
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